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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Private
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the Profit
& total comprehensive Income, statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the financial statements.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures
to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements and our Auditor’s Report thereon.
The other information as identified above is expected to be made available to us after the date of
this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report the fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes inequityand
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally
accepted inlIndia.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
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not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate inthe circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the goingconcern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a goingconcern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factorsin

(i)planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements iri the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
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relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in Annexure ‘1’ our report on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes
of our audit have been received.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant books of account and with the returns received.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with the relevant rules issued thereunder;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.;

Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls is not applicable to the company vide its notification
dated 13th June 2017 (G.S.R. 583(E)) issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended,As this is a Private Limited Company
hence the provisions of section 197 are not applicable to the Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company does not have any pending litigations as on 31st March, 2024, hence there is no
impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial statement on that date

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

There were no amounts which were required to be transfer any amount to the Investor Education and




(v)

Protection Fund by the company during the year.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested ( either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or
in any other person or entity, including foreign entity ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b)The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest
in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 1 I(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material
misstatement.

(d) The Company has neither proposed nor paid any dividend for the financial year, hence this sub-rule
is not applicable .
Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 which has a feature
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all
relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the course of our audit we did not
come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

. For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
“WATRATES Chartered Accountants
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Place: Kolkata 28D AcCh Priya Agarwal
Date: 25.05.2024 Partner
Membership Number:303874
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‘ANNEXURE - 1’ TO THE AUDITORS REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company
on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, we report that:

i.  Inrespect of the Company's Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
a. (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant

details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

b. The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and
Equipment and right-of-use assets so as to cover all the assets once every three
years which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain Property, Plant and
Equipment were due for verification during the year and were physically verified by
the Management during the year. According to the information and explanations
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. Based on our examination of the property tax receipts and lease agreement for land
on which building is constructed, registered sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance
deed provided to us, we report that, the title in respect of self-constructed buildings
and title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the
company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the
lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under Property, Plant and
Equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

d. The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including
right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

e. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2024 for holding any Benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made
thereunder.

a. As explained to us, the inventory of the Company has been physically verified
during the year by the Management. In our opinion the frequency of such
verification is reasonable, and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for any class of inventories were not noticed on such verification.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned
any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees in aggregate from banks and
financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time of
the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act.




vi.

vii.

viil.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees, and securities
provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

As order made by Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of
the Act, Company does not exceed the limit as specified in Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 hence reporting under clause(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
examination of the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion, the
Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales-tax,
Service tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs duty, Excise duty, Value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations are given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the above items were in arrears as at
31 March, 2024 for a period exceeding six months from the date they became
payable,

b. According to the information and explanation given to us and the records of the
Company examined by us, there is no such disputes of dues of Income-Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise duty, Value added tax as at March 31,
2024.

As per the information and explanations given to us and tests performed by us there were
no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
(43 of 1961).

a. The company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b. The company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or other lenders.

¢. The term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained,
and there was no diversion of the amount of loan and the purpose for which it
was used.

d. Funds raised on short term basis, have not been utilized for the long-term
purposes.

e. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of
or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures, hence,
the clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

f. The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies, hence, the clause
3(ix)(f) is not applicable.

a. The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting




Xi.

Xii.
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Xiv.
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Xix.

under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

b. During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

a. No fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

b. No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto
the date of this report.

c. No whistleblower complaints were received by the Company during the year
and upto the date of this report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence, reporting under clause (xii) of the Order
is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties, and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

a. In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence

provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

a. Inour opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause
3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable.

b. the company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities, hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

c. In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as
defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xvi) (¢ & d) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit
and the immediately preceding financial year.
There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

On the basis of the financial ratios, aging and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the
date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of the balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any




assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xX.  The provision of CSR under sub section (1) of Section 135 of companies Act 2013 are not
applicable to the company ,hence reporting under clause(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For B M Chatrath & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Date: 25.05.2024 “J&pacco Partner
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| BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2024

APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

Amount in Rs '000

Paiticiilsre Note As at 31 As at 31 March,
No. March, 2024 2023
|. ASSETS
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant & Equipment 2 83,543.30 50,744.40
(b) Intangible assets 3 293.15 551.89
(c) Right to use asset 3A 39,809.13 48,800.47
(&) Deferred tax assets (net) " 5,167.01 4,481 8B
1,28,912.58 1,04,578.64
2. Current assets
(a) Inventories 5 3,387.88 4,139.14
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables 6 5,534.42 4,948.24
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents r 48,065.59 28,562.38
(iv) Other financial assets 8 300.00 345.00
(c) Other current assets 9 14,348.42 13,448.18
(d) Current Tax assets 10 272.10 487 11
71,908.40 51,930.05
Total Assets 2,00,820.98 1,56,508.69
Il. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1. Equity
(a) Equity share capital 1 100.00 100.00
(b) Other equity 12 59,838.19 22,229.33
Total equity 59938.19 22329.33
2. Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 13 43.994.20 52446.57
(i) Borrowings 14 2,364.64 -
(b) Provisions 15 947.27 2,262.02
47,306.11 54,708.69
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Lease Liabilities 16 8,423.72 7.741.711
(i} Borrowings 17 456.79 75068
(iii) Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 18 271.32 241.76
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 68,799.40 62,653.49
(v) Other financial liabilites 19 2,.892.00 2,401.27
(b) Provisions 20 3,539.31 897.09
(c) Other current liabilities 21 9,094.14 4,784.67
93,576.69 79,470.66
Total Liabilities 1,40,882.80 1,34,179.35
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,00,820.98 1,56,508.69
Corporate information & summary of significant accounting policies 1
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 2-42

As per our report of even date

For B M CHATRATH & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Registration Number: 3010

Partner

Membership No. : 303874
Kolkata
Date - 25.05.2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Apcejay
Hotels & Restaurants Pvt. Ltd.

.S =
—

Vijay Dewan
Director
(DIN: 00051164)

AN ekt

Atul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

Amount in Rs'000

Forthe Year Ended 31 | Forthe Year Ended
Particulars ke No: March ,2024 31 March 2023
. INCOME
Revenue from contracts with customers 23 2,26,737.84 1,77,061.11
Other income 23 11,466.55 206.38
Total Income 2,38,204.40 1,77,267.49
Il. EXPENSES
Consumption of provision, beverages, winefliqour and smokes 24 17,947.14 13,931.51
Employee benefits expenses 25 27 448.75 24,187.05
Finance costs 26 5,085.12 5,876.56
Depreciation and amortisation expense 27 20,091.18 17,362,686
Other expenses 28 1,18,448 83 84 558,35
Total Expenses 1,89,029.02 1,45,916.33
Ill. Profit before tax 49,175.38 31,351.16
IV. Tax expense / (credit) 29
Current Tax 11,578.80 4 700.00
Deferred Tax (510.18) 4,196.10
V. Profit for the period 38,106.77 22,455.07
V1. Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss)
- ltems not reclassified to Profit & Loss (872.86) 2.81
- Income tax effect cn above 174.94 (0.73)
Other Comprehensive Income (497.92) 2.08
VII. Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) for the year 37,608.85 22,457.75
-Earning Per Share (Basic) 28A 3,810.68 2,245 51
-Earning Per Share (Diluted) 3,810.68 2,245.51
Corperate information & summary of significant accounting policies C
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 245

As per our report of even date
For B M CHATRATH & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Fi egistration Number:

Priya Agarwal
Partner
Membership No. : 303874
Kolkata,

Date - 25.05.2024

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Pvt. Ltd,

.= ;,E ~ w Wi B
: _X Vijay Dewan
Director
(DIN: 00051164)

YR

Atul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for year ended 31 March 2024

S

a. Equity Share Capital

{Equity Shares of 10/- each, subscribed and Number of Shares Value of Shares {'000)
Balance As At 1st April'2022 10 100
Add / (Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital -
Balance As At 1st April'2023 10 100
Add / [Less): Changes in Equity Share Capital -
Balance As At 31 Mar'2024 10 100
b. Other Equity
Remeasurement
of defined benefit
ined
Particulars :::I:“ obligation through TOTAL
BS Other Comprehensive
Income
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 22,171.60 57.74 22,229.34
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 38,106.77 38,106.77
Other Comprehensive Income - (497.92) (497.92)
Balance as at 31st March, 2024 60,278.37 (440.18) 59,838.19

Corporate information & summary of significant accounting policies (Refer note 1&2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For B M CHATRATH & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firgn Registration Number: 301011E/E300025

Priya Agarwa
Partner
Membership No. : 303874
Kolkata

Date - 25.05.2024

LA \_:/] ~a \\

For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
Apeejay Hotels & Restaurants Pvi. Ltd.

G e fAL

Vijay Dewan
Director
(DIN: 00051164)

Atul Khosla
Director
(DIN: 01009784)




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MAR 31, 2024

Amount in Rs(000) | Amount in Rs(000)
. For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
31 March ,2024 31 March ,2023
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 49,175.38 31,351.16
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 20,091.18 17,362.86
Finance costs 5,095.12 5,876.56
Bad Debt - 641.13
Liabilities no longer required written back (11,311.03) -
Cash Flow From Operating Acticities before changes in Working Capital 63,050.65 55,231.71
Changes in working capital:
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (586.18) (882.88)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial asset 45.00 (245.00)
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories 751.26 (549.07)
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets (900.24) (6,416.78)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 17,486.50 3,478.83
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 654.62 658.83
Increase/(Decrease) in Financial Liabilities 590.73 (976.76)
{Decrease) in Other liabilities 4,309.47 (16,898.18)
Cash Flow From Operating Activities after changes in Working Capital 22,351.17 (21,831.01)
Less: Income tax paid (11,363.79) (2,407.62)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 74,038.03 30,993.08
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment / Intangible assets (44,184.77) (9,400.18)
Net cash used in investing activities (B) (44,184.77) (9,400.18)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings -
Proceed of non-current borrowings 2,364.64 (750.67)
Repayment from current borrowings (net) (293.89) (1,615.58)
Payment of lease liabilities (12,377.52) (12,210.96)
Finance costs paid (43.27) (169.24)
Net cash used in financing activities ( C) (10,350.04) (14,746.45)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND BANK BALANCE (A+B+C) 19,603.22 6,846.45
Add: Cash and equivalent at the beginning of the Period 28,562.38 21,715.93
Cash and equivalent at the end of the Period 48,065.59 28,562.38
Cash and cash equivalent as per above comprises of (Refer note 8)
Cash on hand 207.90 302.41
Foreign Currency in hand = S
Balances with Banks - In current accounts 47,857.69 28,259.97
48,065.59 28,562.38
e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these interim financial statements

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method as set out in Ind AS - 7 “Statements of Cash Flow"

As per our report of even date

For B M CHATRATH & CO LLP

Chartered Accountants
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APEEJAY HOTHLS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
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Caorporate information

Apesjay Hotels & Restaurants Private Limited (the ‘Company’) is a private Limited company domiciled in India and is incorporated n India under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the Act), Its shares are not listed on any stock exchang The regi d office of the Company is located at 17, Park Street, Kolkata, West Bengal, India, 700016.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of owning, operating and managing hotels.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the Company for the twelve menths have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act., read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (from time to time) and
other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial stalements have
been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financial iabilities and derivative financial instruments which are measured at fair values as below:

i) cenain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value;
iij defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;
Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Currentversus Non-current Classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:
i} Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle of the company

ii}  Held primarily for the purpose of trading,
i) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting penod.

All other assels are classified as non-current.
Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
A liability is current when:

i) itis expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle,

i) itis held primarily for the purpose of trading,

iy itis due to be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) thereis no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

The Company classified all other liabilities as non-current.
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle.
{b) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and it can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duties collected on behalf of the government. The company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each separately identifiable component of the revenue transaction as set
out below:

(i) Revenue from sale of services:

. Revenue room rentals, sale of food and beverages and other allied services related to hotel operations is recognised when the services are rendered and the same becomes
chargeable.

Revenue from hotel operations and related services is recognised net of discounts and sales related taxes in the period in which the services are rendered.The Company
collects service tax, value added tax (VAT) and luxury tax (now collectively subsumed into GST w.e.f. July 1, 2017) on behalf of the government, and therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Company.

(i) Interest Income:

Interest income is recorded on accrual basis using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

(c) Foreign currencies
(i) Functional and Presentation Currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee (INR' or “Rs'), which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
(i) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of
the transaction. However, for practical reasons, the company uses an average rate if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other income/ other expense.
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(d)
(i)

(i)

Non-mongtary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
differences on iterns whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in OC| or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Taxes !

Current income tax

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except the ones recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recoverad from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used o
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date, where the compnay operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying fransaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax retumns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability mathod on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporling date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset o liakility in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlied and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be ulilised, except

When the deferred tax asset relating fo the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investiments in subsidiaries, associales and interests in joint ventures, deferred {ax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting dale and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current fax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. ;

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and initial measurement:

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at deemed cost (fair value as at transition date) less accumulated depreciation, impairment loss, if any. Deemed cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefi ts
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any compenent accounted for as a separate asset
is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

Capital work-in-progress comprises the cost of property, plant and equipment that are not yet ready for their intended use on the reporting date and materials at site.

Subsequent measurement (Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value):

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cosl less accumulaled depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided on a straightine basis, computed on the basis of useful lives (as set out below) prescribed in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013:

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates certain property, plant and equipment, over estimated useful
lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013. The management beligves that these estimated useful lives are realistic and
reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely 1o be used.

Asset Category
Estimated Useful Life (in years) as Estimated Useful Life (in years) as per
per Schedule Il technical assessment
Plant & Equipment and Electrical Installation 15 20
Furniture & Fixtures :
General 10 15-20
Used in hotels and restaurants B 15-20

Vehicles :




(a)

(h)

i)

Gerieral 10 g8
Used in business of running thern on hire B 8
Computers :

Servers and networks 6 3
Deskiops & Laptops 3 8
Kitchen Equipment <] 6
Crockery & Cutlery 3 3

Depreciation on deemed cost of other property, plant and equipment (except land) is provided on pro rata basis on straight line method based on useful lives specified in
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013.

The useful lives, residual values and method of depreciation of property plant and equipment are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

The useful lives of intangible assets (Computer software) are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Computer Software for intemal use, which is primarily acquired from third party vendors, is capitalised. Subsequent costs associated with maintaining such software are
recognised as expense as incurred. Cost of sofiware includes license fees and cost of implementation / system Integration services, where applicable.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes|
in the expected ussful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be
impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes
in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amoriisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the différence between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Amortisation method
Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over estimated useful Ife of five years from the date of capitalisation.

Impairment of nan-financial assets:

At each reporiing date, the company assesses whether there is any indication based on internal/external factors, that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists,
the company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount and the reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If, at
the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflecied at the
recoverable amount. Impairment losses previously recognized are accordingly reversed in the statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the assel. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded
companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculatons, which are prepared separately for each of the compnay's CGUs to which the
individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the company
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the
assel is used.

Impairment losses are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company. The Company contrals its subsidiary when the subsidiary is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the subsidiary and has the ability to effect those returns through its power over the subsidiary.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries.

Investments in Subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment loss, if any. Investments are tested for impairment wherever event or changes in circumsiances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is reccgnised for the amount by which the carrying amount of investments exceeds is
recoverable amount. !

Investment and other financial assets (other than Investment in Subsidiary and Joint Ventures)
Initial gnition and meas t

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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(i)

(ii)

(iv)

Subisequent measurement :

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
Debt instruments at amortised cost .
Debt instruments at fair ‘value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments, derivatives and &quity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Debt instruments at amortised cost: A financial asset is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

Debt instruments at FVOC/ - A ‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash fiows and selling the financial assets, and
The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCl). However, the company recognizes interest income, impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the Statement of
Profit and Loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL - FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost
oras FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed |
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The company has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments - Investments in equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at
fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). For all other equity instruments, the Company makes an irevocable choice upon initial recognition, on an instrument by instrument
basis to classify the same either as at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Amounts presented in other
comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company transfers the cumulative gain or loss within equity. Dividends on such
investments are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets
and credit risk exposure,

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI.

Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL.

The company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the company 1o track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at
each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL, Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporing date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L).
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when

* The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or

+ The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither
transferred nor retained substantizally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the
asset, the company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the company's continuing involvement. In that case, the company also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the assoclated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the company could be required to repay.
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Fair value Measurement

The Company measures its finsncial instruments such as derivative instruments, elc at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction betwsen market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or & liabilty is measured
using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate sconomic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

+ Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

» Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

» Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis. the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, such as properties and unquoted financial assets. Valuers are selected based on market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained. For other assels management carries out the valuation based on its experience, market
knowledge and in line with the applicable accounting requirements.

For the purpose of fair value disclesures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or
liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.
This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes:

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy
- Investment in unquoted equity share
* Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) .

Inventories :

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product of Raw material to its present location and condition includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the purchases of raw materials.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Derivative Instruments :
The Company enters into certain derivative contracts to hedge risk which are not designated as hedges.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting
period with changes included in other income / other expense.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts, currency swaps, interest rate swap, option efc. to hedge its risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations and movements in interest rates relating to the underlying transactions, highly probable forecast transactions and firm commitments.

In respect of Forward Exchange Contracts with underlying transactions, the premium or discount arising at the inception of such contract is amortised as expense or income
over the life of contract. Other Derivative contracts outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are marked to market and resulting loss, if any, is recognized for in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Any profits or losses arising on cancellation of derivative instruments are recognised as income or expenses for the period.

Cash and cash equivalents :

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as
they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management.

Financial Liabilities :
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company's
financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits, loans and berrowings and other financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent 1o initial recognition, the measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 108.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

—
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Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS
109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not
subsequently transferred to statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such
liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amartisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to borrowings.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelied or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing Costs :

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of ime to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing costs.

Retirement and other employee benefits :

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund,
The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting
the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an
asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund.
The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling; excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the
return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of:
The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

The date that the Group recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liabiiity or asset. The Company recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit
obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curlailments and non-routine settiements; and

Net interest expense or income

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities :

Provisions: ;

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, itis probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the company expects some or all of a

provision fo be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement. I

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recegnised as a finance cost.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:

» Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company or

+ Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to seitle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation cannot be made.

Earnings Per Share :

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of parent company (after deducting preference dividends and attributable
taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighled average number of equity shares outstanding during the pericd is
adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Leases :

Ind AS 116 requires the Company to assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. Thal is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.




(u)

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single fecognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for shortterm leases and leases of low-value assets, The Company recognises
lzase liabililies to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-to-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-Lse assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are

measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets Includes

the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lsase incentives received. Rightd
-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. as follows:

Land & Building 10 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using
the estimated useful life of the asset.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lsase payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain 1o be
exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option 10 terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or & rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments. the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. Afier the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities i increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilties is re-measured if there is a medification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts including lease of guest houses (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain & purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption 1o keases of office
equipment like printers taken on lease etc., that are considered to be low value, Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has given adjustments for lease accounting in accordance with Ind AS 118 which came into effect on 1 April 2018,
Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating lsases. Rental income
arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamned.

Priorto ind AS 116, & lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership to the Company is classified as finance lease.

Finance leases, which effectively transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are capitalized &t the lower of the fair
value and present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease term and disclosed as leased assets, Lease payments under such leases are
apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liability based on the implicit rate of return. Finance charges are charged recognized in finance cost in the
statement of profit & loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets in which are capitalized in accordance with the Company's general policy on the borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. A leased asset is dspreciated over the useful life of the asset, However, if there
is no reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain the ownership by the end of lease term, capitalized leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated
useful life of the asset or the lease term.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with, When the grant
relates 1o an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expecied useful life of the related asset,

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset i.e, by equal annual instalments. When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or
related institutions, with an interest rate below the current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The lean or
assistance is initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference between the inilial carrying value of the loan and the
proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per the accounting palicy applicable to financial liabilities.

Government grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-current/current liabilities as deferred Income and credited to profit orloss ona
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within other income.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures.

Significant management judgements

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Company that have the most significant effect on the financial statements,
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Employee Benefits(Estimation of defined benefit obligation)

Post-employment benefits represents obligation that will be settied in the future and require assumptions to project benefit obligations. Post-employment benefit accounting is
intended to reflect the recognition of future benefit cost over the employee's approximate service period, based on the terms of plans and the investment and funding decisions
made. The accounting requires the company to make assumptions regarding variables such as discount rate, rate of compensation increase and future mortality rates.
Changes in these key assumptions can have a significant impact on the defined benefit obligations, funding requirements and benefit costs incurred.

Impairment of trade receivables

The risk of uncollectability of accounts receivable is primarily estimated based on prior experience with, and the past due status of doubtful debtors, while large accounis are
assessed individually based on factors that include ability to pay, bankruptcy and payment history. The assumptions and estimates applied for determining the valuation
allowance are reviewed periodically.

Estimation of expected useful lives and residual values of property, plants and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated at historical cost using straightine method based on the estimated useful life, taken into account &t residual value. The asset's
residual value and useful life are based on the Company's best estimates and reviewed, and adjusted if required, at each Balance Shest date.

Contingent Liabilities

Legal proceedings covening a range of matters are pending against the Company. Due to the uncertainty inherent in such matters, it is often difficult to predict the final
outcomes. The cases and claims against the Company often raise difficult and complex factual and legal issues that are subject to many uncerainties and complexities,
including but not limited to the facts and circumstances of each particular case and claim, the jurisdiction and the differences in applicable law, in the normal course of
business, the Company consults with legal counsel and certain other expers on matters related to litigations. The Company accrues a liability when it is determined that an
adverse outcome is probable and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. In the event an adverse cutcome is possible or an esti is not determinable, the
matter is disclosed,

Fair Value Measurements

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the Balance Sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair values
are measured using valuation techniques which involve various judgements and assumptions.

Rounding of amounts

All amounts disclosed in the Financial Statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest Rupees Thousands (with two places of decimal) as per the requirement of
Schedule IIl, unless otherwise stated.
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APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 3 - OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amount in Rs '000

> Computer
Particulars Software
|Gross Block

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,625.02
Additions during the period 197.34
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2024 2,822.36
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 2,073.12
Depreciation charge during the period 456.10
Balance as at 31 March , 2024 2,529.22
Net block

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 551.89
Balance as at 31 March , 2024 293.15

Note:
Amortisation method

Computer software are amortized on a straight line basis over estimated useful life of five years from the date of

capitalisation.

NOTE 3A . RIGHT OF USE ASSETS

Amount in Rs

Particulars '000
Balance as at 31 March , 2023 79,739.83
Additions during the period =
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2024 79,739.83
Accumulated Amortisation

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 30,939.36
Additions during the period 8,891.34
Disposals during the period

Balance as at 31 March , 2024 39,830.70
Net block

Balance as at 31 March , 2023 48,800.47
Balance as at 31 March , 2024 39,909.13




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 4 - DEFE Net
in Rs ‘000
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Component of Deferred Tax Assets (net)
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Arising on account of temporary differences in accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (438.90) (434.80)
(438.20) (434.20)
Deferred Tax Assets
Allowed only on payment basis 1,248.17 878.86
Others 3,479.85 3,188.12
Carried Forward Loss - -
4728.11 4,046 98
Deferred Tax Liability / (Assets) {5,167.01) (4,481.88)
R iliation of deferred tax
Opening Balance as of April 1 4,481.88 8678.71
Tax expense during the period recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 510.19 (4,196.10)
Tax income during the period recognised in Other Comprehensive Income 174.94 (0.73)
MAT credit entitternent = =
Closing Balance as at end of the period 5,167.01 4,481.88
Movement in deferred tax Assets, net
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets for period ended 31 Mar 2024 Amount in Rs '000
Balance as Recognized in Recognized in Balance as
Particulars at 31 March 2023 Statement of oci at 31 March 2024
Profit and Loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of diff; b tax dep ion and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting (434.90) (4.00) - (438.80)
Others - - - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities (434.80) (4.00) - (438.90)
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting - -
Allowed only on payment basis 878.86 369.31 - 1,248.17
Carried Forward Loss - - - -
Others 3,168.12 136.88 174.94 3.479.95
Gross deferred tax assets ,046.98 506.19 174.94 4,728.11
Deferred tax expensel/{income) - - - =
Deferred tax assetsi(liabilities) (net) 4,481.88 510.19 174.94 5,167.01
Movement in Deferred Tax Assets for period ended 31 Mar 2023: Amount in Rs '000
Balance as Recognized in Recognized in Balance as
Particulars at 31 March 2022 Statement of ocl at 31 Mar 2023
Profit and Loss
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/amorti charged for the financial reporting 1.54 (436.44) - (434.90)
Others - - - -
Gross deferred tax liabilities 1.54 (436.44) - (434.90)
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment: Impact of difference belween tax depreciation and
depreciation/amortization charged for the financial reporting 2 = =
Allowed only on payment basis 850.83 228.03 - B78.86
Carried Forward Loss 4,639.04 (4,639.04) - -
MAT credit entitiement - - -
Others 3,380.41 (221.56) (0.73) 3,168.85
Gross deferred lax t 8,680.27 (4,632.57) (0.73) 4,046.88
Deferred tax l{income) - - z 2
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) (net) 8,678.73 {4,196.13) (0.73) 4,4581.88
NOTE 5 - INVENTORIES
(Valued at cost or net realisable value _whichever is lower) Amount in Rs "000
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Provisions, Beverages (excluding Wine and Liquor ) and Smokes 625.08 958.75
Wine and Liquor 1,865.37 2,256.19
Stores and Spare Parts 807.43 923.20
Total 3,387.88 413914




Note:
Inventories :

Costs incurred in bringing each product of Raw material to its present location and condition includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Initial cost of inventories includes the transfer of gains and losses on qualifying cash flow hedges, recognised in OCI, in respect of the

purchases of raw materials.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated

cosis necessary o make the sale.

All Inventiory held by the Company are Fresh Stock & none of these are Circulation Stock. |

NOTE 6 - TRADE RECEIVABLES

Amount in Rs "000

As at

As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured, Considered Good 5,534.42 4,948.24
Total 5,534.42 4,948.24
Trade receivables are non interest bearing and generally on terms of 60 to 90 days
No Expected Credit Loss is recognised as all the debtors is realised within 12
months.
TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2024 Amount in Rs '000
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 5,492.06 - 42,34 5,534.40
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - -
(il) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - -
(i) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - -
Total - - - 5,534.40
Less: Provision for Doubtful Debts - - - -
Total Trade Receivables - - - 5,534.40
TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE AS ON 31.03.2023 Amount in Rs '000
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years Total
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 4.803.14 - 55.10 4,948.24
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - -
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good - - - -
(ii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered doubtful - - - ol
Total - - - 4,948.24
Less: Provision for Doubtiul Debts - - -
Total Trade Receivables - - - 4,948.24
NOTE 7 - CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Cash on hand 207.90 302.41
Balances with Banks - In current accounts 47 B57.69 28,259.98|
Total 48,065.59 28,562.38)
NOTE 8 - OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CURRENT.
Amount in Rs 000'
|Particulars As at Mar 31,2024 | As at March 31, 2023
|Security Deposits 300.00] 345.00]
NOTE @ - OTHER CURRENT ASSETS Amount in Rs '000
Particul As at Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023

Advance to Suppliers 1431.68 6,120.37
Balance With Government Authorities 10,038.54 6,097.80
Prepaid Expenses 2,878.20 1,230.00
Total 14,348.42 13,448.18

NOTE 10 - TAX ASSETS/ LIABILITIES (CURRENT)

Amount in Rs ‘000

As at As at
Particulars Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Advance Income Tax (net of provisions) 27210 487.11
Total 272.10 487.11

'




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 11 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Amount in Rs '000

As at
— Mar 31, 2024

Authorised Equity Share Capital Number of Shares | Value of Shares
Equity share of Rs 10 each

As at 1 April 2023 10 100
Changes during the period d 2
As at 31st March 2024 10 100
Issued, subscribed and paid up Number of Shares | Value of Shares
Equity share of Rs 10 each, issued subscribed and fully paid up

As at 1 April 2022 10 100
Changes during the period & =
As at 31 March 2023 10 100
Changes during the period - -
As at 31 March 2024 10 100

(a) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10
share held. In the event of liquidation the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the re

(b] Shareholding of promoters

per share. Each shareholders is eligible for one vote per
maining assets of the Company.

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year Changes during
the year
Promoter name No.of shares* |% of total shares
Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited (The Holding Company) 10,000.00 100% -
Total 10,000.00 100% -

(c) Details of equity shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate share in th

e Company

As at March 31 2024

As at March 31 2023

% Number of % Number of
Particulars Shares Shares
Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited (The Holding Company) 100% 10,000 100% 10,000

(d) No Shares have been reserved for issue under Option and Contracts/ Commitments for the sale of shares/ Disinvestment as at the Balance

Sheet date.

(e) No convertible securities have been issued by the Company during the year.
{f) No calls are unpaid by any Director, an Officer of the Company during the year.




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVAT E LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE %2 - OTHER EQUATY

As at
Particulars
Mar 31, 2024
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 22.228.33
ProfitiiLoss) for the year 38.106.77
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss) for the yaar 457,
Closing Balance 59,838.19 22,229.33
Retained Earmings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any fransfer to general reserves appropriation towards divid or other
distribution paid to - licab
NOTE 13 - LEASE LIABILITIES {NON CURRENT)
Amount in Rs ‘000
+ As at Asat
Particulars
Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities a 4399420 52.446,67
NOTE 14 - NON-CURRENT OWINGS
Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
Partic
ahciaisl Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
Vahicle Loan from Banks (Payable with in 5 years through EMI, Secured agamst Hypothecation of 2364164
Vehicle}- More than 12 Months iy =
Total 2,364.64 B
NOTE 15 - PROVISIO
Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
P ulars
Ay Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Gratuty 84727 2.262.02
Leave encashment =
Total 947.27 2,262.02
NOTE 16 - LEASE LIABILITIES (CURRENT]
Amaunt in Rs ‘000
As at As at
Particula
i i Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Lease liabilities 842372 7.741.71
NOTE 17 - BORROWINGS
Amount In Rs '000
As at As at
Particula
g Mar 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured Loan
~From related party - -
Secured Loan
-Cument maturity of Long term Loan (Refer note 14) 456.79 75087
Total 456.79 750.68
Loan from related party is repayable on demand and carries interest @ 10%.
NOTE 18 - T AYABLFS
Amount in Rs '000
- As at
Particulars
Mar 31, 2024
Trade Payables
Dues to micro ent es and small enterprises 271.32
Dues to other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 68 799.40
Total 89,070.72|

Trade Payable Ageing as on 31.03.2024

T

Amount in Rs '000

Particulars Outstanding for following pe riods from due date of payme
More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years o Total
i} MSME 263.98 7.34 - - 27.32
ii] Others 68.442.21 357.19 - - 68,799.40

[ii) Disputed Dues- MSME

[ii) Disputed Dues- Others

Trade Payable ng as on 31.03.2023 Amount in Rs "000
Particulars Outstanding for followling periods from due date of
More than 3
Less than 1 year 1-Z years 2-3 years e Total
241.78 - - - 241.78
57,278.63 1.822.21 264.27 3,288

62,653.49




NOTE 19 -OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES{CURRENT) Amount in Bs "D00

4 Particulars As at March 31 2024 | As at March 31 2023
Employee benefits payable 2.971.29 2,390.77
Interest Accrued 20.71 10.50
lToul 2,992.00) 2,401.27

NOTE 20 -CURRENT PROVISIONS !

Amount in Rs "000
As at

Particulars Mar 31, 2024 As at March 31 2023
Grafuity 2,380.9 31.48
Leave Encashment 158.4 86561
i'ruhl ,539.3 837.09

d_other 1] benefits :
Rel.lm'nmt benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable

The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately administered fund,

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan s determined using the projectad unit credit method.

of gains and losses, the effect of the assel ceiling, excluding amounis included in net inlerest on the nel
defined benafit Imbimy and the retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefnt liatility), are recognised
immediately |n the balance sheet with a corresponding debi or credit to retained eamings through OCI in the period in which they occur,
Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

NOTE 21 - OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Amountin Rs ‘000
Particulars ot As at Marcn 31 2023
Mar 31, 2024
Reimbursement of expenses from related parties
Contract liabilites” 827.02 4342.M
Deferred Income & .
Dues Payable 8.267.12 44267
Total __9.084.14 478467

"Coniract liabilites are ived from and are interest bearing.




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2024

NOTE 22 - REVENUE FROM CONTRACT TH CUSTOMERS

Amount in Rs '000

Particulirs For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March ,2024 March ,2023
Room revenue 1,66,271.32 1,32,781.96
Sale of food and bevarage 42.291.91 33,997.49
Sale of wine and liquor 14,634.02 7,837.88
Other ancilliary and allied service income 3,540.60 2.443.77
Total 2,26,737.84 1,77,061.11
NOTE 23 - OTHER INCOME
Amount in Rs '000
For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
P March ,2024 March 2023
Interest on Income Tax Refund - 75.28
Miscellaneous Income 155.52 131.10
Liabilities no longer required written back 11,311.03 -
Total 11,466.55 206.38
4 -CON N OF PROVISIONS, BE WIN UR & SMOKES
Amount in Rs '000
A For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
Paricuins March 2024 March ,2023
Opening Stock 3,215.94 2,569.21
Add: Purchases during the period 18,236.52 14, 578.24
Less: Closing Stock 3,387.88 3,215.94
Consumption 17.947.14 13,931.51
25 -EMPL! NEFITS EXPENSES

Amount in Rs '000

For the Year Ended 31

For the Year Ended 31

Particulars March ,2024 March ,2023
Salaries, wages and bonus 24,847.74 22,038.54
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds 1,927.32 1,549.18
Gratuity 449.52 402.96
Staff Welfare Expenses 222.16 196.37
Total 27,446.75 24,187.05
NOTE 26 - FINA COsTs

Amount in Rs '000
Particulars For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March ,2024 March ,2023
Interest Expenses (on vehicle loan) 31.93 110.61
Interest on Inter Corporate Loan 11.34 58.63
Interest On Lease liabilities 5.051.85 5,707.32
Total 5,095.12 5,876.56
NOT| - RECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Amount in Rs '000
Bartiscios For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
March ,2024 March ,2023

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment (refer note 2) 10,743.75 7,802.03
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 3) 456.10 508.52
Amortisation of Right to use asset (refer note 3A) 8,891.34 9,052.31
Total 20,091.18 17,362.86




NOTE 28 - OTHER EXPENSES

Amount in Rs '000

Particulirs For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31
s March ,2024 March ,2023

Power and Fuel 27,448.65 26,682.13
Rent 441.43 382.88
Rates and Taxes 4,565.65 2,734.09
Insurance Expenses 793.12 1,267.25
Apartment Expenses ** 9,886.22 9,043.59
Guest Supplies 3.029.72 3.152.52
Advertisement and Sales Promotion 890.37 94.02
Commission 22,274.64 3,883.05
Printing and Stationery 476.26 451.8
Postage, Telephone and Telex 1,093.10 906.9
Security & Service Charges 2,108.35 1,636.6
Traveling and Conveyance 442.98 108.0
Audit Fees 365.00

- Tax Audit Fees 60.00 60.00
- Stat Audit Fees 90.00 90.00
- Cther Matther 215.00 215.00
Bad Debt - 641.13
Outsourced contractual expenses M 2,438.94 2,901.19
Legal and Professional charges 1.008.41 413.82
Hire Charges 1,677.24 984.50
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,343.51 925.89
Repairs & Maintenance- Plant & Machinery 1.273.76 3,775.91
Repairs & Maintenance- Building 3,208.08 -
Repairs & Maintenance- Other 2,139.51 2,370
Lease Rental 31,542.80 21,797.45
Total 1,18,448.83 84,558.35

** Apartment expenses includes consumption of store supllies( linen, carpet, upholestry,

and other related costs

Note - 29 - Income Tax Expense

room decoration material etc) made to the rooms on account of service

Amount in Rs "000

Particulars

For the Year Ended 31

For the Year Ended 31

March ,2024 March ,2023
Current Tax 11,578.80 4,700.00
Income Tax for Earlier Years - =
Deferred Tax 5 510.19 4,196.10
Tax Expenses Recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 11,068.61 8,896.10

Forthe Year Ended 31

For the Year Ended 31

March 42024 March ,2023

Tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax 49,175.38 31,351.16
Applicable Tax Rate 27.82% 27.82%
Computed Tax Expense 13,680.59 8,721.89
Tax effect of:

Change in Tax rate and other items -2,611.88 174.21
[Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss 11,068.61 | 8,896.10 |
N 29A - EARNING PER SHARE

Amount in Rs '000
As at As at
il Mar 31, 2024 Mar 31, 2023

Earning per share has been computed as under:

Profit / (loss) for the period 38,106.77 22.455.07
Number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the period 10,000.00 10,000.00
Basic & Diluted [Earning & (Loss)] Per share 3.81 2.25




APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT 31 March 2024

Amount in Rs '000

wmnw

31 SEGMENT REPORTING

32 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at As at
Partic
i March 31 2024 March 31 2023
|Bank Guaraniees given by the Company to HIDCO 5,000.00 5,000.00
[TOTAL 5,000.00 5,000.00
There are no reportatile segments other than hotels as per Ind AS 108, “Operating Segment’ .

Amount in Rs '000
Particulars For the Year Ended 31 For the Year Ended 31 March,

March, 2024 2023
Post employment benefit - dafined contribution plan ] 1,627.32 1,548.18

Gratuity - defined benefit plan
The Company has a post empk

accrues on completion of five years of service. The C 's n K

rds such gratuity

‘ defined benefit schame in the form of gratuity. The gratuity plan s governed by the Payment of Gratulty Act. 1872, Under the
scheme, employess are entitied to gratuity benefits based on fifteen days salary (basic plus deamess allowance) for each completed year of service. The aforesaid benefit

on the basis of actuarial vaiuation using Projecied

Unit Credit method of the Company's period end obligation under the scheme. The c:0st of providing benefits under this plan is determined on the basis of an actuarial

valuation done,

Defined Benefit Plans: As per actuarial valuation as on March 31, 2024 and recognised in the financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes:

Amount in Rs '000

The d maturity lysis of undi inted gratuity benefit is as follows

[PARTICULARS 202324 2022-23
Gratuity Gratuity
[Rs. in lakh) (Rs, in lakh)
A |Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
1 Present Value of DBO at the bagining of the year 2,283.50 1,893.34
2 Current Servica Cost 25226 265.32
3 Interast Cost 157.25 137.85
4 Past Service Cost -
& Acuisitions (crediti/cost -
[:] Re-m {or Ach | gains)/(k } arising from :
Effect of changes in demographic assumptins (2.24) (3.83)
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 40.72 25.73
Effact of experience adjustments 534.38 (24.71)
- Others -
7 Benefits Paid (87.68) -
8 |Present Value of DBO at the end of the year 3,328.17 2,283.50
B |Change in Fair Value of Assets
1 Plan Assets at the beginning of the year * =
3 Investment Income - =
4 Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognised in Net Interest Expense - -
5 Actual Company Contributions - -
-] Fund Transterred - -
¥ Benefits Paid - -
8 Plan Assets at the end of the year - -
C |Companents of defined benefit costs g i in Other Comp ive Income
1 Actuarial (gains)/losses due to
Effect of changes in demographic tins (2.24) (3.82)
Effect of changes in financial assumptions 40.72 %73
Effect of experience adjustments 534.38 (24.71)
- Others
2 Return on Plan Assets, excluding amount recognised in Net Interest Expense b
3 Re-measurement (or Actuarial gains)/{losses) because of change in effect of asset celling -
4 Comp 15 of defined benefit costs recognised in Other Comprehensiva k 672.88 (2.81
O |Funded Status
1 Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation 332847 2.283.50
2 Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
3 Funded Status [Surplus/(Defict)] (3328.17) (2293.50)
4 Effect of Balance Sheet assets limit - -
& Unrecognised Past Service Cost - =
6 het Asseti(Liability) recognised in Bal Sheet (3328.17) (2293.50) |
I incipal Actuarial / Used: As at As at
31st March 2024 J1st March 2023
Discount Rates 6.99% 7.27%
Expected Salary increase rales # 5.00% 5.00%
|Infiation Rate 5.00% 5.00%
Mortality table IALM(12-15) Ultimate IALM{12-14) Ultimate
# The estimate of future salary increases considered in actuarial valuation 1akes into sccount facters fike inflation, seniority, promation and other relevant factors.
F Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

[1 Year [2to 5 Year

|6 to 10 Year [> 10 Year

| Total

As at 31 March 2024




Defined benefit obligation 246271 39.55 261.50 3.187.84 5,951.60
As at 31 March 2023
Defined benafit obligation 32.60 150.08 1177.26 4,889.73 6,249.68
G
The following table present a sensitivity analysis to one of the relavant actuarial assumption, holding other pUons constant, showing now the defined benefit
obligation would have been affected by changes in the relevant | asst ions that were y possible at the reporting dats. Sensitivity analysis is

determined based on the sxpected movement in liability if the kray assumptions were not proved to be true on different count.

| As at 31 March 2024 | As at 31 March 2023
Increase Decrease |increase Decrease
| Discount rate (-F+ 0.5%) 3057.50 3529.38 215B.66 2438.00
% change compared to base due to itivity -B.133% 9.050% -5.88% 6.34%
Salary growth rate (-/+ 0.5%) 383257 3052.60 2440.65 2156.056
% change compared to base due to sensitivity 9.148% -8.280% 6.42% -5.99%
Employee tumover rate {-/+ 10%) 3317.56 3338.83 2292.92 2294.09
% change compared (o base due to sensitivity -0.319% 0.320% -0.03% 0.03%
Mortality rate (-/+ 10%) 3229.87 332648 229489 228230
% change compared to base due o sensitivity 0.051% 0.051% 0.05% -0.05%

# Incorporated with effect from February 5, 2018

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change In an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice, this is unikely to occur and changes in some of
the assumptions may be comelated, VWhen calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit bligation to significant ial assumplions the same method (present value of the
defined benefit obligation calculated with the proj unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liability
recognised in the balance sheet. The methods and types of assumptions used in prepaning the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the prior period.

H. Risk iates with plan provisions

Valuations are performed on centain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory framework which may vary overtime. Thus,

the Company is exposed 1o various risks in Pproviding the above gratuity benefit, the most significant of which are as follows:

Interest rate risk - The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates, A fall in interest cates will result in an | In the ulti cost of providing the above
benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements).

Liquidity risk : This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity pay-outs. This may arise due to non availability of sufficient cash/cash equivalents to
meet the liabiiities.

Salary escalation risk - The present value of the defined benefit plan is calk with the plion of salary increase rate of plan panicip in future. Deviation in the rate
of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.
Demographic risk | The Company has used certain martality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the fiability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual experience tuming
oul to be worse compared to the assumption.

Regulatory risk : Gratuity benefit is paid in with the i of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1872 (as amended from time to time}. There is a risk of change in
regulations requiring higher gratuity pay-outs £.9. Increase in the maximum limit on gratuity and upward revision of maximum gratuity limit will result in gratuity plan obligation,

K |Demographic assumptions As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
100% of IALM 100% of IALM
Mortality rate 2012-15 2012-14
MNormal retirement age 55 Years 85 Years
Attrition rate based on different age Comp y of employees 5.00% 5.00%
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NOTE -33 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related party di: p 1o Ind AS 24
Related party
Apeejay Surrendrs Park Hotels Limited

Key management personnel
Mr. Vijay Dewan

Ms. Priya Paul

Mr. Karan Paul

Mr. Atul Khosla

Mr. Debanjan Mandal

Mr. Suresh Kumar

Ms. Shalini Keshan

Relationship
Parent Company

Relationship
Managing Director
Nor-executive Director
Non-executive Director
Chief Financial Cfficer
Non-executive Director
Independent Directar
Company Secreiary

Amount in Rs '000

For the period ended | For the period
31 Mar, 2024 ended 31
March, 2023
A) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited - Parent Company !
- Loan Repaid (Net) - 1,537.76
- Loan Received (Net) = £
- Interest 11.34 58.63
B) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited ( Unit : Flurys)
-Purchase of Goods 5087.38 344.99
Balances outstanding with related parties as at the period end
2 As at As at March 31
I Etvticule Mar 31, 2024 2023
A) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited - Parent Company
-Borrowings = -
-Accrued Interest 10.50
- Reimbursement of expenses a
B) Apeejay Surrendra Park Hotels Limited ( Unit : Flurys)
~Trade Payable 1,380.28 574.95 |

NOTE -34 LEASE COMMITMENTS

Company as a lessee

The Company as a lessea has entered into lease contracts which consists of lease of buil

claszified each of its leases (as lessee) al the inception date s either a finance lease or an operaling lease.
The Company also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less, The Company applies the ‘shart-term lease’ recognition exemptions

for these leases.

lding. Before the adoption of Ind AS 116, the Company

Set out below are the net carrying amounts of right of use assets recognised in balance sheet and movement during the period :

Amount in Rs ‘000
As at As at March 31 2023
frticwirs Mar 31, 2024
As at April 1 4880047 48,245.88
Additions - B8,606.91
Depreciation f&.lﬂ.ﬂfl (8.052.31)
As al March 31 38,909.13 ‘I!IW 7
Set out below are the carrying of lease liabilities and during the period
Amaount in Rs '000
As at As at March 31 2023
TArBRulary Mar 31, 2024
Balance as at April 1 60,188.38 62,285.90
Additions 1444.78) 440812
Accretion of interest 5,051.85 5,707.32
Payments [12,377.52) (12.210.96)
Balance as at March 31 52,417.93 60,188.38
Current 842372 7.741.71
Non-current 43,994.20 52 446.67
A t gnised in the § of Profit and Loss
|Pacticulars For the Period ended | For the Year ended 31
31 Mar, 2024 March, 2023
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets ( gni in dep BE91.34 905231
Bxpenses)
Interest expense on lease liabililies (recognisad in finance costs) 5,051.85 570732
Variable lease pay (recognised in other exp ) 3154290 22,180.33
Total amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss for the period 86,08 “|“"“i
A ised in the 8 of Cash Flows
Tolal cash outflow for the leases 12,377.52 12,210.95

NOTE -35 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purp of the Company's capital g capital inc
end cash equivalents.

The primary objective of the Company's capital fe’ isfo

and to maximise shareholder's value.

Issued capital, all other equity reserves and long term barrowed capital less reporied cash

an efficient capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital, support the corporate strategy

The Company's policy is to borrow primarily threwgh banks to maintain sufficient liquidity. These borrawings, together with cash generated from operations are utilised

fer operations of the Company including periodic capital projects

y's existing projects. The ©

¥ itors capital on the basis of cost of

capital. The C ges its capital and makes adj

equivalents.

F ges in i i .ThéP pany maniters capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debi, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash




']

The following table summaries the capital of the Company

Particulars + As at As at March 31

Mar 31, 2024 2023
Mon-current boarrowings (including current maturities of jong term borrowings) g 282143 75067
Current Borrowings - -
Less: Cash and Cash equivalents (48,065.58) (28, 562.38)
TOTAL BORROWINGS (NET) (45,244.18) (27, 811.70
Tuial equity 59,938.19 22.320.33
TOTAL CAPITAL (EQUITY+ NET DEET) 14,694.03 5,482.37
Gearing ratio =307.91% 507.29%
No changes were made 1o the ob , policies or far aging capital during the period'year ended 31 March 2023 and 3151 march 2024,

NOTE -36 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

i} Financial Instruments by catego

As at As at
Mar 31, 2024 March 31 2023
Amortised cost Amortised cost
INR INR
Financial assets
Trade receivables 553442 4,945.24
Cash and cash eguivalents 48,065.59 2856238
Security depesits 300.00 345.00
Total 53500.01 33,855.62
Financial liabilities
B gs (including current ) 282143 73087
Lease liabilities 5241793 60,188.38
Trade payables 69,070.72 €1,853.96
Other financial liakilities 2,892.00 240127
Total 1,27,302.07 1,25,194.28
(i) Fair value
The fair values of fi assets and liabiities are included at the amount that would be received to sell an assst or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
particiy at the date. M and P used o esti the fair values are consistent in all the years. The foll g methods and plions were used o
estimate the fair values.
The management assessed thal fair values of trace receivables, cash and cash equivalents, secunly dep , current b ings, trade payables and other financial liabilities
approximate o their carmrying amounts largely due to the shor-term maturities of these insin. . Further, g also the carrying amount of cenain non-current

berrowings at floating interest rates which are a reasonable approximation of their fair values and the difference between the carrying amounts and fair values is not Expecied to be

(iii) Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost
The carrying amount of financial assets snd fi ial liabilities at ised cost in the fi are a le approxi of their fair values since the
Company does not anticipate that the carrying amount would be significantly differant from the values that would sventually be received or setiled,

ANCIAL EMENT

The Company's principal fi ial liabilities prise of borrowings, trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities. The main purpose of these financial Fabilities
is to finance and support the operations of the Company. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations.,

The Company's b ctivities are exp to & varety of risks including liquidity risk, credn risk and market risk. The Company seeks to mini P L) effects of these
risks by managing them through a structured p of id i and prioriti of risks foll by efforts to monitar, minimize and mitigate the impact
of such risks on its financial performance snd capital. For this . the Company has laid compr ive risk and mini /mitig and are revi
by the management from time to time. These procedures are reviewed to ensure hat executive management controls risks by way of prop rly defined f The Company does
not enter into derivative financial i peculative purg
(A) Credit risk
Credit risk refers {o risk of f loss to the Comp y if 5Or ies fail to meet their al obligations. The C. pany is exp ‘laawitd:kl'mmitsepemljnﬁ
activities (mainly trade receivables),
Credil risk managemen}
Provision for expected credit loss As at 31st March 2024
Estimated gross Expected Credit Carrying
carrying amount at Loss Amount net of
default impairment
this
Trade Receivables 5,534 42 - 5534.42
Cash & Cash equivalents 48,085.59 - 48,065.59
Other Financial Assets 300.00 - 300.00
_EML - 53,900.01
e
Provision for expected credit loss As at 31st March 2023
Estimated gross Expected Credit Carrying
Carrying amount at Loss Amount net of
default impairment
provision
Trade Recejvables : 494824 - 4,948.24
Cash & Cash equivalents | 2856238 - 28,562.38
Other Financial Assets 345.00 - 345.00
33,855.62 - 33.855.62
(a) Trade receivables A
Trade receivables consist of large number of cusiomers, In order to mitigate the risk of financlal loss fram defauliers, the Company has an ongo g credit evaluati in respect of

customers who are allowed credit period, In respect of walk-in customers ihe Company does not allow any credit period and therefore, is not exposed 10 any credit ns'ig.

In general, it is presumed that credit rigk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are mare than 90 days past due. The Comgany has a palicy 10 provide for
specific receivables which are averdue for a period over 180 days. On account of adoplion of Ind AS 109, the Company also uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment
loss or reversal thereof,




As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

Loss allowance at the beginning of the year -
Change in allowance during the period/year & 0
Loss allowance &t the end of the periodiyear - -
|b) Cash & Cash equivalents :

The Company maintaing exposure in Cash and cash equivalents. Investmenis of surplus are made within assigned credit limits with approved counterparies who meet the threshold

fequirements with respect to ratings, fi i gth, credit sg &te. G ‘party credit imits are set to minimizs concentration risk and are reviewed on a periodic basis.
R ili of all for credit imp = Other f al assels As at As at

st March 2024 31st March 2023

Loss allowance &t the beginning = =
Al for exp credit loss({net) - )
Loss aliowance at the end - i
(B) Liquidity risk
Liguidity risk implies that the Company may not be able to meet its obligati i with its fi ial liabdities. The Company ges ils liquidity nisk on the basis of the business
plan that ensures that the funds required for fi g the busi F and ing fi ial liabilities are available in a imely manner and in the currency required at optimal
costs, The gularly rolling fi of the Company’s liquidity position to ensure it hus sufficient cash on an ongoing basis to meet operational fund requirements,
Adiditi ¥, the Company has fund and non-fund based credil lines from banks which may be drawn anytime based an Company's fund requirements. The Company
maintaing a cautious liquidity sirategy with positive cash balance and undrawn bank knes throughout the period.
The following are the ining ities of fi ial liabilities at the reporting date.
C ] ity of fi ial liabilities Up to 1 year 1 year to 5 year More than § years Total
I-Mar-24
B ings (i ling current maturities) 456,79 2.364.54 - 2,821.43
Trade payables 69,070.72 - - 69,070.72
Lease liabilities 8423.72 3160723 12,286.97 52.417.93
Other financial liabilities 2,992.00 - - 2,992.00
—  ———— e - —
B, Total 80,943.23 | 34,081.87 1 87 1 07
-Mar-:
| Borrowings (including current maturiies) T50.67 - - 750.67
Trade payables 62,895.25 - - 62,895.25
Lease liabilities 774171 37,1T4.34 15.272.33 60,188.38
Other financial iabilities 2,401.27 - - 2.401.27
Total 85,148.38 | 5_.4]mzr 15,783.29 1!55!024.93
(C) Market Risk '
Market risk is the risk of loss of future eamings, fair value or future cash flows that may result from & change in the price of a financial instrument . The value of a financial instrument may
(1) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fi ial inst will i b of changes in market interest rates. The Company (s not expased to the
Interest rate risk exposure
The interest rate profile of the Company 's interest bearing financial instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
Fixed rate instruments As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Financial assets 53,800.01 33,855.62
Financial iabilities 1.27.302.07 1,.26,235.57
1£1&2.08 1!80‘091.15
Variable rate instruments As at As at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023
Financial assels = -
Financial habilities - -
{W) Equity price risk

The Company has not made any investment in equity instruments and hence, is not exposed to equily price risk,

() Currency risk
The Company does not have currency risks since it is not exposed to any foreign cumency transaction.




NOTE -38 ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURIT :

The carrying amounts of certain categeries of assets pledged as secunity for current and nen-current bomowings pursuant to the requirements of Ind AS 2, Ind AS 16, Ind AS 28 and Ind
AS 107:

Particulars As at As at
31 Marcii 2024 | 31 March 2023 |
Non-current assets .
\Vehicles 441668 2,074.48
4,416.68 2,074.46

NOTE -39 INVEST PROTECTION FUND
The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and Protection Fund

Note .40

Ne proceedings have been initiated or is pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transaction {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rulss
made there under.

Note - 41

The Company has not identified any transaction with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of the Companies Act, 1956.
Mote - 43

All tr ions have been in the books of account and there are no unrecorded income that have been disclosed during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-Tax
Act, 1851, Moreover there are no unrecorded income and related assets pertaining to previous years.
hote - 43

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year,

NOTE-45. Figures relating to previous periods have been rearr i pan h id y to make them comparable with the current period's figures.

For and on behalf of Board of Directars of
peejay Hotels & R Pt. Ltd.

Kalkata
Date - 25.05.2024

Vijay Dewan Atul Khosla
(DIN: 00051184) (DIN: 01009784)
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APEEJAY HOTELS & RESTAURANTS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2024
L]

44)
Ratio Calculation
As on As on
Financial Ratios Numerator Denominator 31.03.2024 31.03.2023 Variation
(i) Current Ratio Current assets Current liabilities 0.77 0.60 (0.17)
(i Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shafehoider:s Equity 2.35 6.28 3.93
: : Earnings available for :
(i) Debt Service Coverage Ratio debt service Debt Service 162.79 72.72 (90.07)
" Average
i Return on Equity Net Profits after taxes Shareholder's Equity 0.91 0.51 (0.41)
(v) Inventory Turnover Ratio Revenue Average Inventory 60.25 11.45 (48.79)
3 ; Average Trade
i) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio Revenue Receivable 43.26 9.17 (34.09)
Purchases of goods,

Trade payables turnover ratio services and other 2;”1?:3de3 0.28 0.08 (0.22)
(vii) expenses e
(wiii) Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue Working Capital (10.46) (5.19) 5.27
(ix) Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue 0.22 0.18 (0.04)

" Earning before interest o i

) Return on Capital Employed and taxes Capital Employed 51% 8% -44%




